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Chairman’s Statement

2008 has seen difficull economic times with stresses in the global economy as a whole and the
automotive market in particular. The Group has risen to the challenge and has continued to successfully
provide an extensive range of logistics solutions across diverse industry sectors, both deepening
existing customer relationships and forming new partnerships.

The Group reports a profit before goodwill and exceptional items for continuing operations of £3.4m in
2008 compared with £9.8m profits for 2007. The reported profitability for continuing operations reflects
the current difficult economic environment and the Group's continuing diversification and widening of its
capabilities and business base, with significant investments in new clients being made to position the
Group for future growth, Including discontinued operations, the Group has made a profit before goodwill
and exceptionals of £1.4m for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007 - £6.4m).

Despite the global challenges | am pleased to report that overall the Group has made a profit after tax
on continuing operations of £1.2m (2007 - £18.1m), reflecting the above operaling performance and the
benefit in 2007 of cerain exceptional items and other income that have not recurred in 2008. Including
discontinued operations, the Group reports an overall loss on ordinary activities of £3.0m (2007 - £9.8m
profit).

The Group has continued to win new cusiomers and has provided an expanding number of services to
existing customers, both in the UK and overseas, as we continue to widen our global reach. This year
has seen major business wins in growing sectors including retail, health and utilities, demonstrating the
strong commitment of the Group to developing new business relationships and the adaptability of The
Unipart Way. Going forward into 2009, the Group will continue to diversify operations into new markets,
broadening the client base and applying The Unipart Way philosophy. Further investment will be made
in the reorganisation of the UK branch network to continue the improved performance and generate the
sales growth that has been seen in the latter half of 2008. 2008 saw the completion of the sale of its
paint distribution operations and has also included the disposal of the crash panel repair and glass
distribution operations. The impact of these disposals has been reflected in these financial statements
as discontinued operations for both the current year and the prior year which has been restated to
include these operations as discontinued.

During the year, investments have been made to enable future growth potential to be fulfilled and as a
result borrowings have moved to a level of £32.3m at the year end (2007 - £8.4m). The Group has
maintained strong control over working capital and together with the long term banking facilities that are
secured until 2011 and 2013, continues to maintain significant borrowing headroom for future
investments. In light of the current economic pressures, the Board are not proposing a dividend for the
year.

The Group has continued to embed The Unipart Way in ail aspects of our work to obtain the operational
excellence and continuous improvement benefits delivered by this philosophy and set of tools and
techniques. Significant competitive advantage has been achieved by the Group hamessing the
expertise and talents of our people in this way.

The Group could not have built our brand, our deep customer focus and high level of service without the
efforts of all our people, past and present. The Board are extremely grateful for their dedication and hard
work during these difficult times and in continuing to demonstrate their unwavering enthusiasm for the
Unipart spirit and philosophy.
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Chief Executive’'s Review

2008 has been a year of sustained progress in spite of an unsettling economic climate. The Group has
worked tirelessly to maximise operational excellence, customer intimacy and continuous improvement
on the journey to become the “Ultimate Logistics Partner”.

The Group works in partnership with its customers to design, develop, implement and operate supply
chain solutions in the distribution and logistics market across the whole spectrum of the supply chain.
Services Include initial procurement, inventory warehousing and management, deliveries to business
and retail customers, complex reverse logistics support as well as full financial control and reporting.
The products and services are supplied either through the management of customers’ supply chains or
the distribution of products in the UK based branch network and worldwide warehousing structure. At all
times the Group’s objective is to offer an unrivalled level of ocperational exceflence driven by a deep and
individual understanding of its customers.

The Unipart Way is a comprehensive operational architecture underpinning the Group’s philosophy of
working and provides a set of tools and techniques that form the basis of its knowledge management
system. This common platform and consistent way of working provides the fundamental building block
for all the Group's functions across all supply chain activities, all customer market sectors and within
internal support functions, facilitating the optimal deployment and development of the Group's
employees. The Unipart Way enables the Group to improve faster and more efficiently than its
competitors, and is the cornerstone of Unipart's long term competitive advantage. It has been embraced
throughout the Group and its benefits are being increasingly recognised by majer global companies in
the external business environment,

During the year the Group has invested in major programmes to support its customer intimacy strategy.
An exceptional hody of knowledge has been developed and rolled out to key employees as part of this
strategy in order to help them to understand the real and perceived needs of cur customers better than
anyone else and to serve them betier than anyone else. A Group wide product map has also been
developed in order to connect the wide variety of solutions that the Group can provide or create in order
to serve our customers better.

Nurturing the talent of all employees is crucial to the success of the Group which continues to invest
heavily in developing and training its people in the full suite of The Unipart Way. In 2008, the 'Gate to
Great' development framework, which was launched in 2007, has become a core aspect of The Unipart
Way and has helped us to develop the skills and talents of all employees and harness their potential in
the day-to-day operations of the Group. The Group continues to recognise the contribution of its
employees in delivering outstanding personal customer service through its Mark In Action award
scheme, which in 2008 celebrated its 20" anniversary. The Mark In Action award is only presented after
a thorough nomination and review process by a select panel of external judges. In 2008, 21 awards
were granted, bringing the total number of awards presented since the programme began in 1988 to
2,389 at 31 December 2008.

The success of the Group is due to the calibre and commitment of pecple at every level. | want to lake
this opportunity to thank all of our people for their hard work and dedication.

Operating review

The financial results for the year ended 31 December 2008 reflect the disposal of the Group's crash
panel repair and glass distribution operations during the year. As a result, the Group’s Profit and Loss
Account has been split between continuing and discontinued operations and the 2007 result has been
reslated to show the prior year impact of operations sold during 2008 as discontinued.

In relation to the continuing operations, the operating profit (before goodwill amortisation and
exceptionals) was £3.4m (2007 - £9.8m). This result reflects the impact of the cumrent economic
environment and the significant ongoing investment the Group is making for new logistics contracts.
The operating loss before goodwill and exceptionals relating to the trading and costs of disposal of the
discontinued operations amounted to £2.0m (2007 - £3.4mj), resulting in total profit before goodwill and
exceptionals for the Group of £4.4m (2007 - £6.4m).

The Group has delivered a profit after tax on continuing operations of £1.2m (2007 - £18.1m). After the
impact of the discontinued operations the Group reports an overall loss on ordinary activities after tax of
£3.0m (2007 - profit of £9.8m). The Group ended the year with a net borrowings position of £32.3m
compared with £8.4m at the end of 2007.

The Group operates primarily in the distribution and logistics market, either managing customers' supply
chains or selling products directly to the customer through its warehouses and branch networks, The
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Group supplies its services to a diverse range of sectors including Automotive, Technology, Retail, Rail,
Defence, Health, Utilities, Leisure and Manufacturing which require solutions in the supply chain and
logistics market. The nature of these customer market sectors does not significantly affect the type and
breadth of the Group's services provided. The main market sectors of the Group's customers are
considered in more detail below.

Automotive

The automotive industry has faced significant challenges in 2008 as a result of the economic downturn,
however, the Group has demonstrated resilience to this trend and has seen some exciting
developments. Despite the global economic problems, Jaguar's own vehicle sales volumes increased
from 2007, bucyed by the launch in 2008 of the new XF model. The Group's involvement in this launch
was highly successful, earning the accolade from Jaguar of the *best ever product launch” in support of
this new model. Recent industry experts in a feature on performance-based outsourcing in logistics (the
Logistics Viewpoints website) have quoted Unipart's working relationship with Jaguar as an example of
global best practice. The reach of services provided by the Group in aftermarket logistics has expanded
to provide services to Jaguar and Land Rover in new regions including South Africa, China and Russia.
During the year the Group was appointed by Mobis as the parts logistics provider for Hyundai and Kia in
the UK which are being serviced through a new site opened in Tamworth. These successes, and
investments made in 2008, further consclidate the Group's comprehensive range of automotive
business services, systems and products.

Through the UK based branch network and the European distribution operations, the Group provides
focused expertise and knowledge of logistics parts distribution and supply chain solutions to the
independent motor trade, national fast fit, roadside assistance, garage forecourt retail and commercial
vehicle markets. The Group represents the only business genuinely capable of providing a national
proposition to all of these markets through its network of branches. The UK branch network has had
renewed focus on the basics of product, range and availability in the business which has resulted in
positive like-for-like sales growth in the key workshop and commercial vehicle sectors.

Several key programmes have been implemented during the year to further improve the UK branch
network. The branch optimisation programme has continued resulting in improved locations and
inventory availability to better serve the growing customer base. The benefits of restructuring are now
being clearly shown with year on year sales growth and several major customer wins in both the
independent and major account areas by the end of 2008. The supply chain restructuring has resulted in
a new IT system in the warehouses and a leaner distribution channel to the branch network reducing
ongoing running costs and improving product availability, lnvestment in continuous improvement of
processes using The Unipart Way has resulted in efficiency improvements and cost savings in the
branch network which will be extended in 2009 by the introduction of a new branch and back office IT
system to reduce non-value added activity and further improve service levels in the branches.

During the year the Group completed the sale of its paint distribution proposition and exited both the
crash panel repair market and its glass distribution operations in crder to increase focus on growing the
profitability of the core parts proposition. Costs associated with the sale of these operations of £2.8m
have been included as exceptional items after operating profit.

Technology

The Group has continued to grow and win new customers in the Technology sector, despite the
turbulent economic backdrop. The partnership with Vodafone has gone from strength to strength in 2008
with Unipart acting in a key role for Vodafone's most successful product launch in 2008. The Nuneaton
repair centre has used creativity and deployment of The Unipart Way to double the volume of repairs
handled and expanded the technology services provided into device customisation for handset
manufacturers, The Group's relationship with BSkyB has also evolved significantly with Unipart
providing an increased range of services including support for BSkyB's rapidly growing broadband
offering. 2008 saw continued volume growth in many clients including Hutchison 3G and Play.com and
the addition of new business streams with a new contract signed to perform repair and customisation
services for a major manufacturer of data devices.

Retail

2008 has been a year of significant contract wins in retail with the long term contract with Waterstone's
being a key focus of this area of the business. The complex implementation of the highly mechanised
sortation system at the new distribution centre in Burton-on-Trent has resulted in a full internet service
and the stores will come on line during 2009. A strong relationship has been established with Habitat
during the year. Towards the end of 2008, two further well known names were added to the growing
client list of retail operations. Firstly, the charity RSPB engaged Unipan to provide logistics services for
its extensive range of bird care and bird-related products over a five year coniract beginning March
2009, The Group was also successful in its bid to run the home and lifestyle product ranges for
Sainsburys from the new distribution centre in Tamworth. This contract is expected to be fully




Unipart Group of Companies Limited Annual Report 2008
4

operational in 2009. Existing relationships continued to strengthen with the range of services provided to
Homehase, Halfords and ASOS being extended and significant year on year sales growth successfully
delivered for ASOS over the key Christmas trading period.

Expert Practitioners

With leverage of The Unipart Way skills and knowledge, the Group has continued to provide supply
chain and Lean consultancy solutions to both new and existing customers on a global basis. 2008 has
been a year of building on the success of programmes developed in 2007, particularly with HMRC, and
of securing business in new sectors, most notably health, utilittes and banking. In the health sector, a
considerable amount of work has been undertaken with the NHS and there are numerous opportunities
in the pipeline for 2009, demonstrating the positive impact and reputation the Group has developed in
this area. In utilities, a major contract has been undertaken with Severn Trent to deliver full Lean
implementation and strong growth has also been seen in key banking and finance clients including
Zurich, Legal and General and UBS.

Rail

The Group has continued to provide full spectrum logistics and distribution services across a significant
propartion of the UK rail market and has a growing presence abroad. A strong track record has been
maintained in retaining and building contractual relationships in spite of the continual changes in the
traction and rolling stock market as a result of franchises moving between the Train Operating
Companies. In support of these customers, the bogie refurbishment facility in Doncaster has established
a significant customer base and provides a much needed high quality service to the industry. [n addition
to rolling stock logistics, Unipart continues to provide a broad range of logistics services to Network Rail
and its contractors in the infrastructure maintenance and project market. This year has seen the
completion of the West Coast Route Modernisation project for which the Group was a major supplier of
materials.

A number of new products have been introduced into both the rail and road markets and sales in
overseas markets are starting to build, which is testament to the investment in permanent representation
in Australasia, Western Europe and North America in recent years.

Manufacturing

The Group has manufacturing interests through its heat exchange proposition and through its joint
ventures of UEES (with Eberspacher) and KUL (with Kautex Textron). The heat exchange operations
remain the premier provider of heat exchangers to the UK motorsport market with the production of
bespoke products and enhanced services to Grand Prix teams Maclaren, Renault and Red Bull.

UEES continued the successful supply of exhausts, catalysts and manifold for Land Rover, steel fuel
tanks for Aston Martin, Jaguar and Bentley, filler pipes to Jaguar and Land Rover and engine
componeants to Ford, Bentley and Isuzu. During the year, UEES also acquired the assets of an exhaust
manufacturer, securing the supply to Aston Martin and Lotus Cars. This new business was transferred
late in 2008 and further demonstrated UEES abilities in not only fabrication and assembly, but also in
the key skills of project management and The Unipart Way. UEES will commence supply in 2009 and
will seek to grow this business further using the new technology acquired with the company.

During 2008, KUL has undertaken a significant capital investment programme, incorporating a new
extension and additional blow moulding facilities whilst maintaining world class quality levels on current
supply. One new product has been introduced during the year with a further four products developed for
intreduction in 2009. Further new business relationships are being developed that will maximise the use
of capacity within the Coventry site.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In 2008, the Group was awarded Gold status in Business in the Community’s (BiTC) corporate
responsibility index, the UK's leading benchmark for responsible businesses, for the second consecutive
year. This award recognises the commitment shown by the Group to achieving improvements in all
aspects of Corporate Responsibility, but some of the most recognised achievements come from the
work supporting the community. The Group also continued with its support for the InspirEd project
providing educational and vocational training to permanently excluded pupils from the local area. Key
environmental achievements in 2008 include using only renewable energy sources, a widespread
recycling culture, the use of visual management tools to monitor and control energy usage and an
industry-leading project to reduce the carbon footprint of the supply chain for rail products. This
innovative piece of research will identify the carbon intensive steps in the supply chain and take steps to
reduce elements of production, distribution or use that have high environmental impact. A website has
been developed during the year to focus employees on the environment and to spread best practice
throughout the Group. In recognition of the environment initiatives undertaken by the Group, BiTC has
also awarded the Group a platinum rating, the highest rating available.
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Dividends

The Board are not proposing a dividend for the year, with further investments being made to consolidate
the Group's position and to enable the Group to continue to develop and grow the business as
opportunities arise in the forthcoming year.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the execution of the Group's strategy are subject to a number of
risks. Risks are formally reviewed by the Board and appropriate processes put in place to monitor and
mitigate them. A summary of the key business risks affecting the Group is set out below:

{a) Competition

Across the various areas of its logistics services, the Group operates in a highly competitive market
which applies pressure to the sales and margins that can be achieved. Through the thorough application
of The Unipart Way, the Group seeks to differentiate itself from its competitors by offering superior levels
of quality, service and availability to its customers. The Group also differentiates itself through the broad
spectrum of supply chain solutions it can provide and tailor for its customers.

({b) Customer contracts

Over a number of years, the Group has developed a significant number of iong term partnerships with
its clients, with both sides investing in the relationship for mutual benefit. As a result, the loss of any
major clients would represent a risk to the Group however this risk is mitigated through continued
diversification with new clients, close client management at various levels and long-term contractual
refationships. The Group manages varying degrees of its clients’ supply chains including holding
significant levels of inventory at the Group's worldwide warehouses. Through tight controls and
continuous improvement processes, the Group minimises the risk of loss of its own or clients’ inventory.

(c) Pension deficit

The Group's risks in relation to its defined benefit schemes have been reduced following the successful
transition to a defined contribution scheme for a significant proportion of the employees. Significant
pension contributions have also been made. The risks in the defined benefit schemes remain the
exposure to external factors such as discount rates, market returns and mortality rates.

{d) Global recession

In 2008 the severity of the recession has become clear in the economy as a whole and in the
automotive market in particular. The Group is well diversified in both the products and markets it
operates in and also in the long term customer relationships it has developed, therefore the risk it is
exposed to is reduced. In addition, having secured long-term funding arrangements, the Group
continues to maintain significant banking headroom for future investments.
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Financial Review

Financial highlights

* Operating profit before goodwill, amortisation and exceptional items of £3.4m refating to continuing
operations (2007 - £9.8m)

+ Profit after tax for continuing operations of £1.2m (2007 - £18.1m)

* Impact of discontinued operations resulting in overall Group loss after tax of £3.0m (2007 - profit

£9.8m)

» Total shareholders’ funds at the year end of £88.6m (2007 - £107.5m) reflecting the impact of the
increase in pension deficit from £20.7m in 2007 to £39.9m in 2008

* Net borrowings at the end of the year of £32.3m (2007 - £8.4m)
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Turnover

Total tumover, including our share of joint ventures and associates, at £1,099.3m is below the previous
year (2007 - £1,143.3m) but reflects a small increase in turnover on continuing operations (2008 -
£1,084.5m) compared to the prior year (2007 - £1,072.6m).

Profit for the year
The Group reports operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items in the continuing
operations of £3.4m (2007 - £9.8m).
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This is a credible result in light of significant new contract set up investments charged to profit, as well
as dealing with the economic downturn which accelerated in the second half of the year. The Group
continues to maintain strong control over its cost base to reflect activity levels.

The Group reports a profit after taxation for the year for continuing operations of £1.2m (2007 - £18.1m)
and a loss after taxation of £4.2m {2007 - £8.3m}) relating to discontinued operations, The discontinued
operations relate to the disposal of the Group's paint distribution operations, crash panel repair
operations and the glass distribution operations. The 2007 profit after tax result for continuing operations
included the benefit of a number of exceptional items that have not recurred in 2008 and a higher leve!
of net other finance income relating to pension scheme assets and liabilities.

Overall the Group reports a loss after tax for the financial year of £3.0m (2007 - profit £9.8m).

Exceptional items reported within operating profit
There were no exceptional items included within operating profit (2007 - £3.0m income).

Exceptional items reported after operating profit

Exceptional items reported after operating profit of £2.9m, included as discontinued items, represent
losses of £2.5m incurred in the disposal of the crash repair operations, costs of £0.3m relating to the
sale of the glass distribution operations and costs of £0.1m arising as a result of a reassessment of the
estimates made for costs in relation to an operation sold in a prior year.

Share of joint ventures’ operating profit

The Group’s share of operating profit in joint ventures of £1.1m (2007 - £1.8m) reflects the downturn
seen in the automotive industry, particulariy in the last quarter, but in spite of this continues to show the
profitability of these business ventures.

Share of associate’s operating profit
Operating profit of £0.4m (2007 - £0.8m) has been generated by an overseas associate.

Interest and other financial income and charges
Net interest payable for the year was £5.1m compared to £4.3m in the previous year reflecting the
increased borrowing levels following investments made to develop the Group.

Net other finance income of £5.7m argse in the year (2007 - £9.7m). This reflects the net financing
income of £5.9m (2007 - £9.9m) that arose from the expected retumn of the pension schemes assels
over the interest on liabilities as prescribed by FRS 17. The year on year reduction reflects lower than
anticipated asset performance and higher interest on pension scheme liabilities. This has been partially
offset by the unwinding of discounting on provisions of £0.2m (2007 - £0.2m).

Taxation
The overall tax charge for the year is £1.7m (2007 - £0.9m).

Shareholders’ funds
Total sharehoiders’ funds at the year end of £88.6m have decreased by £18.9m since the last annual
report. This primarily reflects the movement in the deficit on the pension schemes of £19.2m.

Cash generation and borrowings

The Group reports a cash outflow before financing of £22.4m (2007 - £15.5m) and together with non-
cash movements reports a net borrowing position at the end of the year of £32.3m compared to a
position of £8.4m at the end of 2007.

The Group has the benefit of long-term borrewing facilities secured until 2011 and 2013 and through
close confrol of working capital the Group continues to maintain significant headroom under these
facilities.

Pensions

Future accruals to the Group’'s two main defined benefit schemes ceased in 2005. Since then, the
Group has undertaken significant activity to address its obligations to these schemes. An actuarial
valuation as at 31 January 2007 has been completed and a Scheme Specific Funding Pian was agreed
with the Trustees and implemented.

The net FRS 17 pension deficit has increased to £39.9m (2007 - £20.7m). The key factors were the
effect of cument economic conditions feading to poor performance on assets held by the scheme,
partially offset by reduced liabilities due to higher interest rates on corporate bonds and also the
additional contributions from the Group.
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Treasury policies
The Group's financial risks are managed centrally by Group Treasury with policies that are approved by
the Board.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk in respect of debt is reviewed on a regular basis. In order to protect against the volatility
of interest charges, interest rate swaps and interest ‘Caps’ and ‘Collars’ are used for appropriate
proportions of the debt.

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group's foreign currency transaction risks mainly arise because receipts in currencies other than
Stering are greater than its payables in those currencies, principally for the US Dollar and the Euro.
Hedging of net currency exposures is implemented in order to ‘protect’ forecast gross profits and cover
short term currency exposure. The hedges are enacted through forward and spot currency contracts
and options entered into by Group Treasury on the basis of trading projections.

{c) Liquidity risk

The objective is to ensure a mix of funding methods offering flexibility and cost effectiveness to match
the needs of the Group. In the context of the current banking environment the Group is pleased to have
secured long term banking facilities and continues to maintain strong contro! over working capital.

{d) Counterparty risk

The investment management of liquid funds aims to maximise the return on net funds subject to the
security of the principat and the liquidity of the Group. The Group has identified counterparties of
suitable credit worthiness.

The Group enters into foreign exchange and interest rate contracts as part of its normal course of
trading. The resulting derivatives are not included at fair value in the Group balance sheet at 31
December 2008. The extent and fair value of these derivatives is of such a level that it does not
materially affect the reported results and as a result has not been disclosed.

Key performance indicators
The Board uses a number of financial and non-financial key performance indicators to monitor the
progress of the Group.

The performance during the year for continuing operations, together with historical trend data is set out
below:

(a) Availability

The availability of product for delivery to customers is a key perforrmance indicator across the Group. In
aggregate, this statistic is not meaningful due to differing service level client requirements. Individually,
this is commercially sensitive information which would be prejudicial to disclose.

{b) Daily sales — continuing operations - £4.3m (2007 restated - £4.3m}
Daily sales are in line with the prior year.

{c) Return on sales — continuing operations - 0.3% (2007 restated — 1.0%)
Return on sales has been impacted by the reduced profitability during the year with the impact of
significant new contract set up investments.

(d) Debtor days - continuing operations - 45 days (2007 restated - 42 days)
The slight increase in debtor days reflects short term timing differences around the year end.

(e) Creditor days - continuing operations - 46 days (2007 restated — 51 days)

The decrease in creditor days primarily reflects the impact of the phasing of certain project spend
around the 2007 and 2008 financial year ends rather than any specific changes to underlying payment
terms.

(f) Inventory turn — continuing operations - 5.2 times (2007 restated — 5.0 times}
The increase in inventory turn is primarily driven by the rebalancing of inventories to match activity
levels whilst maintaining high levels of availability for our clients and operations.
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Board of Directors

Lord Sheppard KCVO KT

Non-executive Chairman

Lord Sheppard was appointed non-executive
Chairman of Unipart in 1996 following 21 years
as a director of Grand Metropolitan, which
included positions as Group Chief Executive
(1986-93) and Chairman (1987-96). Knighted in
both 1990 and in 1996, and awarded a peerage
in 1854, Allen Sheppard had previously spent 18
years in the motor industry in finance, sales,
marketing and line management with Ford,
Rootes and British Leyland.

He graduated in 1953 at the Lendon School of
Economics where he is now an honorary fellow
and honorary govermor. He is also Chairman of
Namibian Resources plc and One-Click HR pic
as well as Chancellor of Middlesex University.
Lord Sheppard has been a key figure in the
running of the Prince’s Trust and Business in the
Community and is President of London First,
which strives to improve and promote Landon.

A J Mourgue

Group Finance Director

Tony Mourgue was appointed Group Finance
Director in 1986 having joined Unipart in 1983,
Prior to that, Tony worked with Btack & Decker in
the UK with responsibilities in Europe, the Middle
East and Africa, having qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Ernst & Young in London and
Paris.

As well as managing tha internat financial control
of the Group, he has been responsible for
executing the numerous acquisiions and
disposals the Group has undertaken and has
been closely involved with relationships with
investors, including the original buyout, a share
buy back and share transactions between
institutional shareholders. He is also responsible
for banking relationships and having led the
process to reduce Group debt, has put into place
long-term banking facilities for the Group.

J M Neill CBE

Chief Executive & Deputy Chairman

John Neill was appointed Chief Executive of the
Group in 1987, having led the management
buyout from British Leyland. John joined Unipart
in 1974, becoming Managing Director in 1977.
Together with the Boarmd members and members
of the Group Executive Committee he is
responsible for the day-to-day management and
overall performance of the Group.

He holds a number of Key positions within the
motor industry including Vice President of the
Society of Motor Manufacturers and Traders
{SMMT), as well as being a3 Board member of the
SMMT Industry Forum. His other offices include
being a non-executive director of Charler
Intemational ple and Rolls-Royce plc. He is also
a former member of the Court of the Bank of
England and has been awarded honorary
ODoctorates in  Business Administration from
saevera! universities including Oxford Brookes,
De Montfort and Middlesex.
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J D Clayton

Managing Director

John Clayton manages the Group's interests in
the Rail, Commercial Vehicle, Leisure and
Marine sectors. John has been instrumental in
six acquisitions made over the last 12 years and
the development and supply of Expert
Practitioners to the Group. Since joining Unipart
in 1983, he has held senior financial and
operational roles in the Group.

tn his earkier career, he qualified as a Chartered
Accourdant with Emst & Young before joining
Btack & Decker from where he moved to Unipan.

F W Burns

Managing Directar

Frank Bums manages the Group's interests
across a range of sectors including Automotive,
Agrospace, Defence, Technology and Retail.
Frank also has Board responsibility for our joint
venture Manufacturing interests along with the
Group's lean consullancy solutions. He is
responsible for the implementation of The
Urnipart Way across the Gmoup and the
development of the Group's Expert Practitoners.

He started his career at Unipart in 1988 where
he held a number of positions including
specialising as the Managing Director of the
Group's Manufacturing interests. In 1998 he
moved into the Logistcs arena and was
appointed Managing Director during 20086.

He previously held senior positions at both GKN
and Tenneco Automotive.

A M Vinton

Non-executive director & Deputy Chainman
Fred Vinton was appointed a director in 1998
and non-executive Deputy Chainman in 2004. He
is the Chairman of the international fund
management company EP Private Equity. He is
also a director of a private family fund
management company as well as several fund
management companies investing in Latin
America and Europe. He previously served as
Chief Operating Officer at N. M. Rathschild &
Sons and as Chief Executive responsible for the
financial assets of the Bemberg Family Group.

Bom in Argentina, he graduated from Harvard in
Economics and spent 25 years with J. P. Morgan
in the US, South America and, Iatterly, London
where he was Senior Vice President responsible
for banking operations and UK business from
1980-86.

R € Tomkinson

Non-executive director

Robert Tomkinson jeined Unipart in 1998. At the time
of his appointment he had just retired as Group
Finance Director of Europe's leading electronics and
electrical distribution group, Electrocomponents pic.

Previously he held a similar position with Automotive
Products, and his early career was spent in energy
and merchant banking. He has been a Chairman or
a non-executive director of a number of companies
and of the University of Buckingham, from which he
has received an honorary doctorate.

[

S R Johnson

Non-executive director

Having graduated from Cambridge University with an
engineering degree, Steve has worked in a variety of
roles and organisaticns including periods working in
consultancy, retail and logistics. He was appointed to
the Board in 2006,

Steve spent a number of years working in strategy
consultancy with Bain & Company and with Kalchas
before joining Asda where he performed a number of
senior operationa! roles. After a period setting up an
outsourcing business for GUS, he was appointed
CEQ at Focus DIY,

Most recently Steve was CEQ at Woolworths Group
Ple.



11 Unlpart Group of Companies Urmnited Annual Report 2008

Directors' Report

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008,

Principal activities and business review :

Unipart develops, implements and operates supply chain solutions in the distribution and logistics market in partnership with its customers in a wide
range of customer sectors including Automotive, Technology, Rail, Retzil and Consumer industries. Unipart's expertise and solutions cover the entire
supply chain, ranging from initial procurement, warehousing and distribution to consultancy and training as well as IT and management systems and
reverse logistics support. These activities and an indication of likely future developments are described in the Chairman’s statement on page 1, the
Chief Executive's review on pages 2 to 5 and the Financial review on pages 6 to 8, which collectively form the Business review. Principal subsidiaries,
Joint ventures and associates are listed in note 26.

The prior year rasult has been restated 10 include as discontinued operations, the crash panel repair and glass distribution operations that were sold
during 2008.

Profit and dividends

For continuing operations, the Group reports a peofit after tax for the financial year of £1.2m (2007 - E18.1m). The tolal Group loss for the financial
year after taxation was £3.0m (2007 - £8.8m profit). The Company has not paid nor is it proposing to pay any dividends in respect of the financiat year
ended 31 December 2008 (2007 - £nil).

Directors and directors’ interests
The curment directors served throughout the year and up to the date of signing of the report. The biographical details of the current directors are listed
an pages 9 to 10. The beneficial interests of the directors and their families in the share capital of the Company at the year end are shown below.

Ordinary Shares (A, D and E)

of /2p each
31 December 1 January
2008 2008
Number Number
Benasficial Holdings
Lord Sheppard 135,000 135,000
JM Neill 7,766,082 7,266,082
AJ Mourgue 1,397,324 1,397,324
JD Clayton 282,583 282,583
FW Burns 112,002 89,780
AM Vinton 275,000 250,000
RC Tomkinson 32,600 32,000
SR Johnson 12,000 12,000
Non-Beneficial Holdings
JM Neill 898,020 898,020
Crdinary ‘A" shares under 31 Dacember 1 January
aption in the Company 2008 2008
Number Number
JM Neilt 1,918,367 1,818,367
AJ Mourgue 1,122,449 1,122,449
JD Clayton 345,000 270,000
FW Bumns 405,000 330,000

Options wera granted over 150,000 shares during the year. No options were exercised or lapsed ¢urng the financial year.

There was no contract with the Company or its subsidiaries subsisting during or at the end of the year in which any director of the Company had a
materal interest, with the exception of an indemnity which was made available o the directors against liabilities incurmed by them in defending
proceedings against them in relation to the affairs of the Company. The indemnity is subject to the provisions of the Companies Act and is set out in
the Adticles of Association.

Financial risk management

The Group's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effect of changes in price sisk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
foreign exchange rate risk and cash flow risk. The Group enters into interest rate and foreign exchange conftracts to reduce the level of sk that it
faces. These policies are approved by the Board and are managed centrally by the Group's treasury department. Further details of the financial risks
are disclosed in the Financial review on page 8.

Oversoas branches
Details are set out in nota 26 to the financial statements.

Donations

During the year, the Group supported charities with donations of £19,200 (2007 - £20,400) of which £10,200 (2007 - £9,700) was for health and well-
being purposes, £2,100 {2007 - £3,300) in respact of child welfare and youth development and £6,900 (2007 - £7,400) to cther charitable purposes in
support of employees in their fund-raising activities. The Group made no political donations during the year (2007 - £nil).

Supplier payment policy

Provided there are no disputes concerning the supply of goods or services, it is the Company’s and Group’s normal practice to pay its suppliers within
an acceptable period of time. The average number of days purchases in trade creditors at 31 December 2008 was 46 days (2007 restated - 51 days)
based on continuing operations. The Company does not have any trade creditors.
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Directors' Report (continued)

Employees

The Group continues o involve employees in the decision-making process and communicates with all employees on various areas, including the
economic and financial factors affecting the Group via regular briefings, on-site training, employee forums and through our in-house DVD programme,
'Grapevine'. Employee involvement in the Group's performance is encouraged through employee bonus and share schemes and this involvement
extends to the board of trustees of the main pension scheme on which there are employee representatives.

The Group's aim for all existing employees and applicants for employment is to fit the qualifications, aptitude and ability of each individual to the
appropriate job, and to provide equal opportunity regardless of sex, religion or ethnic origin. The Group does all that is practicable to meet its
responsibility towards the employment and training of disabled people. Where an employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to provide
continuity of employment in the same job or a suitable alternative.

Group Share Trust

In order to enable employees to buy shares and have an interest in the Group, a Group Share Tnest was set up at the time of the ariginal buyout in
January 1987. It has independent trustees and during dealing perods it can offer to buy and sell shares. Periodically it may also participate in
schemes that enable employees to acquire shares and share options. It is not considered appropriate to consclidate the Group Share Trust in the
Group's financial statements due to the terms of the trust deeds goveming the Group Share Trust, which prevent the Group from having de facto
control over the: trust.

Going concern
The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Auditors
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCaoocpers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law). The financial statements are required by law {0 give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and Group and of the
profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing those financial statements, the directers are required to:
= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been foliowed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and
+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business,
in which case there should be supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.

The directars are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1885. They are also responsible
far safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonabie steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
iregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissermnination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Statoment of disclosure of information to auditors
In the case of each director in office at the date the direciors' report is approved, under section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985 the following
applies:
» so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and
» he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himse!f aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditers are aware of that information.

By order of the Board

LW__/\
1
M D Rimmer
Company Secretary
Oxford
8 April 2009
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Independent Auditors' Report

to the members of Unipart Group of Companies Limited

We have audited the Group and parent Company financial statements {the “financial statements”) of Unipart Group of Companijes
Limited for the year ended 31 December 2008 which comprise the Group Profit and Loss Account, the Group and Company Balance
Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the note of Group Historical Cost
Profits and Losses, the Accounting Policies and the related notes.

Rospective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} are set out in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements In accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’'s membars
as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent
with the financial statements. The information given in the Directors’ report includes that specific information presented in the Chairman’s
statement, Chief Executive’s review and Financial review that is cross referred from the Business review section of the Directors’ report,

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for cur audit, or if information specifed by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report, and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements.
This other information comprises onty the Directors’ report, the Chairman's statement, the Chief Executive’s review and the Financial
review. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies within
the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion .

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and Company's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit s¢ as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In qur opinion:
- the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the Group's and the parent Company's affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for
the year then ended;
* the financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and
« the information given in the Directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Birmingham

8 April 2009
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Group Profit and Loss account

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 Restated 2007
Continuing Discontinued Totat Continuing  Discontinued Total
operations operations operations operations
Notes £Em £m £m £m £m Em
Turnover
Total tumover 1,084.5 148 1,099.3 10728 70.7 1,143.3
Less: share of joint ventures and associates {65.1) - (65.1) {76.6) - (76.6)
Group turnover 1 1,019.4 14.8 1,034.2 996.0 70.7 1,066.7
Operating profit/ (loss)
Group operating profit / (loss) before goodwill 34 (2.0 14 9.8 (3.4) 6.4
amortisation and excepticnal items
Goodwill and other intangibles amortisation 9 (1.9} - {(1.9) {2.1) - (2.1)
Exceptional items 3{a) - - - 3.0 - 3.0
Group operating profit / {loss} 2 1.5 {2.0) {0.5) 10.7 (3.4) 7.3
Share of operating profit in joint ventures 1.1 - 1.1 1.8 - 1.8
. Share cf operating profit in associates 0.4 - 0.4 0.8 - 0.8
Total operating profit/ (loss) 30 (2.0} 1.0 13.3 (3.4) 99
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 3(b} - . - 15 - .5
Loss on disposal of businesses 3(b) - (2.9) {2.9) - {6.1) {6.1)
Profit / {loss) on ordinary activities before 30 (4.9) {1.9) 14.8 {9.5) 53
interest and tax
Net interest payable
- Group {4.6) {0.5) {5.1) (3.4} (0.9) {4.3)
- Share of joint ventures - T - - - -
Total net interest payable 4 {4.6) {0.5) {5.1) {3.4) @.9) (4.3)
Net other finance income 5 5.7 - 5.7 9.7 - 9.7
Profit / (loss} on ordinary activities before 4.1 (5.4) {1.3) 211 (10.4) 10.7
tax
Tax on profit / (loss) on ordinary activities 3] {2.9) 1.2 (1.7} {3.0) 2.1 (0.9}
Profit / {loss) on ordinary activities after tax 1.2 (4.2} (3.0} 18.1 {8.3) 9.8
Equity minority interests 20 (0.3} {0.3)
(Loss) / profit for the financial year 20 (3.3} 9.5
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Group statement of total recognised gains and losses

For the year ended 31 December 2008 2008 2007
Notes £m £m

{Loss) / profit for the financial year

Group {4.4) 7.2

Share of joint ventures and associates 11 2.3

20 {3.3) 95

Actuarial {loss) / gain recognised on Group 20, 23 (36.2) 236

pension schemes

Deferred tax relating to actuanal {loss) / gain on 13, 20 10.0 (8.7)

Group pension schemes

Current tax relating to actuarial loss on Group 20 0.2 -

pension schemes

Actuarial {loss) / gain recognised on joint 20 (0.3} 03

ventures' pension schemes

Defested tax relating to actuarial {loss}/ gain on 20 - {0.1)

joint ventures’ pension schemes

Revaluation of freehold land and buildings in 10 {0.9) 30

year

Foreign exchange adjusiments 20 1.4 15

Total gains and losses recoghised relating to the year (19.1) 201

Note of Group historical cost profits and losses

For the year ended 31 December 2008 2008 2007
Notes £m £m

{Loss) f profit on ordinary activities before taxation {1.3) 10.7

Difference between historical cost depreciation 20 0.3 01

charge and the actual depreciation charge of
the year calculated on the revalued amount

Historical cost (loss) / profit on ordinary (1.0 10.8
activities before tax
Historical cost {loss) / profit for the year (3.0) 98

retained after tax and equity minority
* interasts
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Balance Sheets

As at 31 December 2008

Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Notas £m £m Em £Em
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 9 4.5 6.9 -
Tangible assets 10 55.0 51.4 -
Investments in subsidiaries 11(c) - - 720 62.0
Investments in joint ventures
Share of gross assets 221 29.3
Share of gross liabilities {16.0) (23.9)
11(a) (c) 6.1 5.4 5.8 58
Loans 11(a) (c) 43 4.3 4.3 43
Investment in associates 11(b} 1.3 0.8 - -
Other investments 11{b) - 0.1 - -
71.2 68.9 82.1 721
Current assets
Stock . 12 147.3 148.6 - -
Debtors - amounts falling due within one year 13 (a) 166.1 166.0 19.1 50.0
Debtors - amounts falling due after more than one year 13 {b) 27.2 211 0.9 -
Cash at bank and in hand 16.0 29.7 0.2 0.2
3156.6 3565.4 20.2 50.2
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 14 (239.6) (268.4) {18.2) (17.3)
Net current assets 117.0 97.0 2.0 32.9
Total assets less current liabilities 188.2 165.9 84.1 105.0
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 15 (42.0) {(19.2) - -
Provisions for liabilities 17 (17.7) {18.5) - -
Total net assets (excluding net pension deficit) 128.5 128.2 84.1 105.0
Net pension deficit 23 (39.9) (20.7) - -
Total net assets (including net pension deficit) 88.6 107.5 84.1 105.0
Capital and reserves
Calted up share capital 18 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
Share premium account 20 4.4 44 4.4 ;1.4
Capital redemption reserve 20 11.5 1.5 11.5 11.5
Revaluation reserve 20 20.0 20.5 - -
Profit and loss reserve 20 51.5 70.1 67.8 88.7
Equity shareholders' funds 21 878 106.9 84.1 105.0
Equity minority interests 20 0.8 0.6 - -
Total shareholders’ funds 88.6 107.5 84.1 105.0

Approved by the Board on 8 April 2009 and signed on its behalf by

J M Neill
Group Chlef Executive
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Group Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes £m £m £m £m
Net cash outflow from operating activities 22(a) (8.1) (7.4)
Dividends received from joint ventures - 1.5
Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received 14 1.1

Interest paid (5.7) {4.3}

Interest element of finance lease rentals (0.1) -

Issue costs on debt {0.5) (1.0)

Dividends paid to minority shareholders (0.4) {0.2)

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (5.6} (4.4)
Taxation (2.0) {1.4)
Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of intangible fixed assets (0.1} -

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (10.1) (6.8)

Sale of tangible fixed assets 1.6 2.8

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (8.6) {3.8)
Acquisitions and disposals

Disposal of businesses 22(c) 1.9 -

Net cash inflow for acquisitions and disposals 1.9 -
Cash outflow before financing (22.4) (15.5)
Financing

(Decrease) / increase in debt due within a year (5-2) 1.0

Increase in debt due after more than one year 20.5 15.3

Capital element of finance lease rental payments (0.3) -

Net cash inflow from financing 15.0 16.3
(Decrease) / increase in cash 22{b) {7.4) 0.8
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net cash 2008 2007

Notes £m £m
{Decrease) / increase in cash 22(b) {1.4) 0.8
Net cash outflow from change in debt and lease financing 22(b) (14.8) (‘15.3)
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows (22.2) {14.5)
Non-cash movements
New finance leases 22(b) {3.8) -
Currency translation differences 22(b) 23 (0.6}
Amortisation of capitalised bank fees 22(b) {0.2) (1.1}
Movement in net debt (23.9) {16.2)
Net (debt) / cash at 1 January 22(b) (8.4} 7.8
Net debt at 31 December 22(b) {32.3) (8.4)
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Accounting Policies

A summary of the more imporiant accounting policies adopted by
the Company and the Group is given in the following paragraphs.
The policies are consistent with the previous year, except where
noted below.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prapared on the going concern
basis in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
accounting standards. The financial statements are prepared on
the histoncal cost basis of accounting, modified to include the
valuation of freehold tand and buildings.

In 2008, the Group has adopted the amendment to FRS17,
‘Retirement benefits’. As a result of this the Group has changed its
accounting policy and quoted securities held in the defined benefit
pension schemes are now valued at bid price rather than mid-
market value. The effects of this change on the prior year resuits
and the reported net assets are immaterial as noted in note 23.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements comprise a consolidation of the
financial statements of the Company and all of its subsidiary
undertakings and incorporate its share of the results of all joint
ventures and associates via equity accounting principles. The
results and fair value of the assets and liabilities of undertakings
acquired are consolidated from the date the Group gains control,
The results from discontinued operations are included up until the
date they are disposed of. Where, in the view of the directors, the
Group does not have de facto control over the related entities,
these entities are excluded from the consolidation in the Group's
financial statements. No profit and loss account is presented for
the Company as permiited by Section 230 (3} of the Companies
Act 1985. Uniform accounting policies are applied across the
Group. Intragroup transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue

Income is recognised on the invoiced and accrued value of goods
and services supplied during the year, including amounts received
and receivable on management fee contracts. The sale of goods
are recognised at the point at which the goods are dispalched. The
sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered, by reference to the agreed contraciual
arrangements. Tumover is reported net of conditional discounts,
VAT and other sales {axes. Where the Group holds properties that
are sublet, this income is recognised over the period to which the
sublet relates. Income derived from gain share arrangements is
recognised when the benefits are agreed with customers and are
certain.

Pension costs

The Group accounts far pension and other post retirement benefits
schemes in accordance with FRS 17 Revised, 'Retirement
benefits'. For defined contribution schemes, contributions are
charged to the Group profit and loss account as payable in respect
of the acoounting year.

For defined benefit schemes, the amounts charged 1o operating
profit are the current service costs, excluding the costs of servicing
the investments, and gains and losses on settlements and
curtailments. They are included within staff cosis and charged or
credited to the statutory profit and loss account headings o which
they relate. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the
Group profit and loss account if the benefits have vested. If the
benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised
over the period until vesting occurs. The interest cost, the cost of
servicing the invesiments and the expected retumn on assets are
shown as a net amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent to
interest. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in
the Group statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Where defined benefit schemes are funded, the assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in separate
trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured
at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using
the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to
the current rate of retum on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities.

The actuarial valuations are obtained at least tiennially and are
updated at each balance sheet date. The resulting defined benefit
asset or liability, net of the related deferred taxation, is presented
separately after other net assets on the face of the balance sheet.

Where it is not possible to split the scheme assets and liabilities
between individual subsidiary companies, the relevant subsidiary
companies account for pensions on a contributions basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill, being the excess of the fair value of purchase
consideration of businesses acquired over the Group's share of the
fair value of assels and liabilities acquired, is written off to the
Group profit and loss account on a straight line basis over periods
which represent the useful economic lives of those assets, which
are all between 10 and 20 years. All goodwill arising prior to the
adoption of FRS 10, '‘Goodwill and intangible assets’ remains
written off to reserves and will be charged to the Group profit and
loss account on subsequent disposal or termination of the business
to which it relates.

Intangible assets

Expenditure incumred to acquire licences to manufacture cerain
products are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the estimated economic life of the manufacturing
activity, the life of the licence or twenly years. Development costs
incurred on specific projects are capitalised when recoverability can
be assessed with reasonable certainty and are amortised in line
with the expected sales arising from the projects.

Tangibte fixed assets

All tangible fixed assets, with the exception of freehold land and
buildings, are caried at cost less depreciation and provision for
impairment. The cost of purchased assets is the value of
consideration given to acquire the assets and the value of other
directly attributable costs which are incurred in bringing the assets
to the location and condition necessary for their intended use.

Freehold land and buildings are carried at valuation (open market
value for existing use). As the Group's portfolio of freehold land and
buildings consists of a number of broadty similar properties, whose
characteristics are such that their values are likely to be affected by
the same market factors, a full valuation will be performed on a
rolling basis to cover all the properties over a five-year cycle,
together with an interim valuation on the remaining four-fifths of the
portfolio where it is likely that thare has been a material change in
value.

With the exception of freehold land, which is not depreciated,
depreciation on the cost or valuation of tangible fixed assets is
charged evenly fo write off the assets to their residual value over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold and long leasehold buildings 35 to 50 years
Short leasehold buildings the term of each lease
Plant and equipment 1to 10 years

The Group's policy is to capitalise as tangible fixed assets computer
software expenditura only in respect of major systems changes.
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Impairment of fixed assets and goodwill

impairment provisions are calculated by comparing the net book

value of fixed assets or goodwill with the higher of the net

realisable value and the value in use of those assets, The value in
- use is calculated using forecast risk-adjusted discounted post-lax

cash flows over the economic life of the related fixed asset or

goodwill.

Joint ventures and associates

The Group's share of the profits or losses of joint ventures and
associates are included in the Group profit and loss account on the
equity accounting basis. The holding value of associates and joint
ventures in the Group balance sheet is calcutated by reference to
the Group's equity in the ne! assets, goodwill and loans of such
joint ventures and associates.

Other investments
Other investments are stated at cost less provision for impairment.

Stock

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
Cost of finished products and work in progress includes, where
appropriate, direct labour and materials and a proportion of factory
overheads. Net realisable value is calculated, after taking into
account provisions for obsclescence, as the actual selling price,
net of trade discounts, less costs to completion and all related
marketing, selling and distribution costs.

Warranties

Provision is made for the best estimate of the costs of making
good under warranty products sold before the balance sheet date,
and discounted where material.

Onerous contracts

When a contract becomes onerous, provision is made for the best
estimate of the unavoidable losses that are expected to be
incurred under the remainder of the contract term.

Property provisions

Provision is made for the best estimate of unavoidable future lease
paymenis, on a discounted basis where material, when the lease
becomes onerous, net of amounts that can be reasonably
expected 10 be recovered from subtenants to which the respective
propenty is expected to be sublet.

Provision is made for the best estimate of dilapidation costs, on a
discounted basis, at the date the obligation arises. The unwinding
of the discount is included within interest expense. The provision is
net of amounts recoverable in raspect of dilapidation costs for
properties that have been sublet to unrelated third parties.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for to recognise timing differences
between the recognition of gains and lesses in the financial
statements and their recognition for tax purposes. A deferred tax
liability is recognised if transactions or events result in the Group
having an obligation to pay more tax in future periods. A deferred
tax asset is only recognised where transactions or events that have
occurred before the balance sheet date give the Group the right to
pay less tax in future, and it is considered reasonable to forecast
that there will ba future profits against which the deferred tax
assets can be recovered. Deferred tax balances are not
discounted.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share plans, where matenal, is recognised as an
expense in the Group profit and loss account over their expected
vesting periods. The fair value of share plans is determined at the
date of the grant, taking int¢ account any market based vesting
conditions attached to the award. Non-market based vesting
conditions are taken into account in estimating the number of
awards that are likely to vest; these estimates are reviewed
regularly and the expense charge adjusted accordingly.

Finance leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership {o
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases where the Group acts as the
lessor are presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. Rental payments received by the company
under the finance leases are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding obligation.

The recognition of finance income is based on a pattern reflecting a
constant periodic rate of return on the company's net investment in
the finance lease. The finance charge from the lease is recognised
within interest receivable in each accounting period. Rentals
relating to the reduction of the outstanding obligation are
recognised through revenue over the term of the lease. Normal
selfing losses are recognised through costs of sales on inception on
the lease.

For assets held under finance leases when the Group acts as a
lessee, the capital element of the leasing commitment is shown as
an abligation under finance teases. The lease rentals are treated as
consisting of capital and interest elements. The capital element is
applied to reduce the outstanding cbligation and the interest
element is charged to the profit and loss account in proportion to
the reducing capital element.

Operating leases
Operating lease rentals are charged against operating profit as
incurred.,

Finance costs

Costs incurred in respect of oblaining new debt instruments are
capitalised and reported against the respective debt within
liabilities, and amortised to the Group profit and loss account over
the term of the facility.

Foreign currency

The profit and loss accounts of overseas activities are translated
into Sterling at average rates of exchange. Balance sheets are
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation at closing
rates of the opening balance sheets of overseas activities, together
with the year end adjusiment to closing rates of profit and loss
accounts translated at average rates, are taken to reserves.

Exchange differences arising in the normal course of trading and
on the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are taken
through the Group profit and loss account. Differences arising on
the transfation of foreign currency bomowings are taken directly to
resarves where there is a comesponding exchange difference on
the translation of the related net investment.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant estimation techniques

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of income and expenditure in the reporting
period. Actua! results could differ from those estimates. Estimates
are principally used when accounting for pension costs, the
valuation of freehold land and buildings, the useful economic lives
of fixed and intangible assets, provisions and, in certain instances,
*in revenue recognition.

Financial instruments

The Group uses varicus derivative financial instruments to reduce
exposure of foreign exchange risks. Authorised instruments include
forward currency contracts and currency options. The Group also
uses interest rate swaps and options to manage its interest rate
exposure.

As permitted under the Standard, the Group has not adopted FRS
23 'The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates' and therefore
forward currency contracts used to hedge transaction exposures
are not revalued. Transactions to hedge transtation exposures are
revalued and the net unrealised difference taken to trading profit.
All realised gains and losses are taken to operating profit,

Currency option premia are recognised at their historical cost in the
Group balance sheet as other receivables. At maturity, the option
premia together with any realised foreign exchange differences on
exercise, are taken {o operating profit.

Interest rate option premia paid are recognised at their historical
cost in the Group balance sheet as other receivables. Option
premia are taken to net interest payable spread over the interest
periad covered by the relevant options.

Amounts payable or receivable in respect of interest rate swap
agreements used 10 manage interest rate exposure are recognised
as adjusiments to periodic interest expense over the duration of
the contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Segmental reporting

Itis the directors' judgement that the Group operates principally in one business segment, that of distribution and logistics management.

An analysis of turnover by location of external customer is as follows: 2008 2007
£m £m
United Kingdom 765.5 809.1
Qther Europe 115.2 117.8
Rest of the world 153.5 139.7
Group tumaver 1,034.2 1,066.7
Share of joint ventures (United Kingdom) §9.7 71.3
Share of jeint venture and associate (Other Europe) 5.4 53
Total tumover including share of joint ventures and associates 1,099.3 1,143.3

The geographical analysis of turnover, {loss) / profit before tax and net assets by origin is as follows:

Group turmover

{Loss) / profit before tax

2008  Restated 2007 2008  Restated 2007
Em £m £m £m
Continuing operations

United Kingdom 929.1 9223 {3.9) 12.8
Other Europe §2.2 49.8 4.5 4.5
Rest of the world 281 23.9 2.0 1.2
Total from continuing cperations 1,019.4 996.0 2.6 18.5
Discontinued operations (United Kingdomn} 7.9 63.9 {4.5) (9.9}
Discontinued operations (Other Europe} 6.9 6.8 {0.9) {0.5)
Share of joint ventures {United Kingdom) 59.7 713 11 1.8
Share of ioint venture and associate (Other Europe) 3.4 5.3 a4 0.8
1,099.3 1,143.3 {1.3) 10.7
Nat assets
2008 2007

Total operations £m £m
United Kingdom 108.1 106.4
Other Europe 33.5 20.4
Rest of the world 15.4 9.8
157.0 136.6
iNet debt (28.5) {8.4)
Net pension deficit (39.9) {20.7)
88.6 107.5

Within the Group's 2008 total nel debt, £3.8m has been allocated directly to UK operations where the debt originates.

2 Group cperating {loss) / profit

Contlnuing Discontinued 2008 Continuing Discontinued  Restated 2007

operations operations Total operati operations Total

Em £m £m £m £m £m

Group turmover 1,019.4 14.8 1,034.2 996.0 70.7 1,066.7
Cost of sales {759.7) {10.8) (770.5) (740.5) (49.3) (789.8)
Gross profit 259.7 4.0 263.7 2555 214 276.9
Distribution costs (158.7) (5.2) {163.9) {155.9) {19.3) (175.2)
Administrative expenses (99.5) (0.8) (100.3) (91.9) {5.5) (97.4)
Exceptional items (note 3(a)) - - - {6.6) - {6.6)
Total administrative expenses (99.5) {0.8) (100.3) (98.5) (5.5} (104.0)
Qther exceptional operating income (note 3(a)) - - - 9.6 - 9.6
Group operating profit / {loss} 1.5 (2.0) {0.5) 10.7 (3.4) 7.3

The current year trading loss of the paint distribution operation of £0.3m was provided for in the prior year as pait of the exceptional items.
The refease of the provision has been included within administrative expenses.

Group operating {loss) / profit is stated after charging / {crediting): 2008 2007
Em £m
Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets (including impairment charge of £nil (2007 - release £0.5m)) 6.3 55
Amortisation of goodwill and other intangibles 1.9 21
Loss f (profit) on the disposal of land and buildings a.2 (0.2)
Loss on the disposal of other tangible fixed assets 0.3 0.5
Operating leases - land and buildings 220 21.2
- plant and machinery 1141 12.7
Sublet income from land and buildings (4.6} (3.6)

Details of the exceptional items recognised in amriving at operating (loss) / profit can be found in note 3(a) to the financial statements.
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2 Group operating (loss) / profit (continued)

During the year, the Group {including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Group's auditors at costs detailed
below:

2008 2007
£m £m
Audit services
Audit of Company and Group financial statements 0.1 0.1
Other services to the Group
Audit of the Company's subsidiary financial statements pursuant to legislation 0.4 04
Taxation services ] 0.9 06
QOther services 0.1 0.3

During the year the fees payable by the Group's associated pension schemes to the Group’s auditors were £0.1m (2007 - £0.1m).

3 Exceptional items

2008 2007
a) Exceptional items - recognised In arriving at operating (loss) / profit £m £m
Compensation for early completion of contract (i) - 9.6
Recrganisation costs (i} - (6.6}
- 3.0
2008 2007
b) Exceptional items - recognised after arriving at operating (loss) / profit £m £m
Continuing operations
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (i) - 1.5
- 1.5
Discontinued operations
Loss on disposal of business (iv) (2.8) (4.3}
Loss in respect of business sold in prior years {v) {0.1) (1.8}
{2.9) (6.1)
{2.9) (4.6}

{i) During the prior year, the Group received an amount of £10.2m as compensation for the early completion of a contract less associated
pension costs of £0.6m. These costs were treated as allowable for tax purposes in 2007.

(i} During the prior year, costs of £6.6m arose in respect of a reorganisation of the UK branch network operations of the business,
including consultancy costs driving various performance improvement projects and redundancies resulting from changes to the structure.
These costs were treated as disallowabie for tax purposes in 2007,

(iiiy In the prior year, a profit of £1.5m arose in respect of the sale of a leasehold property. Due to the availability of capital losses for tax
purposes, there is no taxation charge relating to the property disposal.

{iv) In 2008, the Group incurred losses on disposa! of £2.5m in respect of the sale of its crash panel repair operation that completed on 10
June 2008 and £0.3m relating to the sale of the glass distribution operations that completed on 31 December 2008 following which, the
Group no longer has any activities in these markets. £0.4m of these charges have been treated as disallowable for tax purposes. During
the prior year, the Group incurred losses on disposal of £4.3m in respect of the agreement to sell the Group's paint distribution cperations
that completed on 31 January 2008. £0.5m of these charges were treated as disallowable for tax purposes.

(v) During the year a further charge of £0.1m arose as a result of a reassessment of the estimates made for costs in relation to a
business sold in a previous year. A similar charge of £1.8m was made in the pricr year. These charges are allowable for tax purposes,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 Net interest payable Cantinuing Discontinued 2008 Continuing Discontinued  Restated 2007
oparations operations Total operations operations Total
Em €m £m £m £m £m

Interest payable
Bank loans and overdrafts {5.2) {0.5) 5.7 (3.2) 0.9) {4.1)
Finance lease interest (0.1} - (0.1) - - -
Amortisation of issue costs on bank facilities (0.4) - {0.4) {1.1) - {1.1)
(5.7) (0.5) {(6.2) 4.3) {0.9) (5.2)
Interest receivabile 1.1 - 1.1 0.9 - 0.9
Net interest payable (4.6) {0.5) 5.1) (3.4) {C.9) (4.3)

The interest amount included in the discontinued ceolumn is calculated based on either the actual borrowings or on the borrowing levels
needed to support the discontinued operations using the Group's average interest rate.

5 Net other finance income 2008 2007
£m £m
Net finance credit on pension schemes (note 23)
Expected retum on pension scheme assets 39.5 41.2
Interest on pension scheme lizbilities {33.6) {31.3)
59 a9
Unwinding of discounting of provisions (note 17) (0.2} (0.2)
Net other finance income 57 9.7
6 Tax on (loss) / profit on ordinary activities
Contlnuing Discontinued 2008 Continuing Discontinued  Restated 2007
operations operations Total operations operations Total
a) Analysis of tax charge / {credit) £m £m £m £m £m £m
Current tax
UK tax
UK Corporation tax on (loss) / profit 0.2 {0.6) {0.4) 1.0 (1.9) (0.9)
Share of joint ventures' tax 0.4 - 04 0.7 - 0.7
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 0.4 {0.2) 0.2 0.1 - 0.1
Foreign tax
Corporation taxes 1.8 (0.4} 1.4 1.9 {0.2) 1.7
Total current tax charge / (credit) 2.8 {1.2) 16 3.7 (2.1) 16
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences 24 - 241 {0.1) - 9.1)
Impact of change in UK tax rate - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (2.0} - (2.0} {0.7) - {0.7)
Representing:
United Kingdom {0.4) - (0.4) - - -
Foreign tax 0.5 - 0.5 (0.3) - {0.3)
Share of jeint ventures - - - (0.4) - (0.4)
Total deferred tax charge / (credit) 0.1 - 0.1 (0.7) - (0.7)
Tax on (loss) / profit on ordinary activities 2.9 {1.2) 1.7 3.0 (2.1) 0.9

Tax relating to the discontinued operations is calculated based on the losses arising in the discontinued operations together with a
proportion of the relevant prior year adjustments. No deferred tax has been allocated to the discontinued operations.
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6 Tax on (loss)} / profit on ordinary activities (continued)

b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 28.5%. 2008 2007
The differences are explained below: Em £m
{Loss) / profit on ordinary activities before tax (1.3) 10.7

(Loss) / profit on ordinary activities multipied by effective standard rate in the UK 28.5% (2007 - 30%) (0.4) 32

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1.1 25

Difference between depreciation and capital allowances 1.5 0.7

Qther timing differences 20 (1.6}
Pension related items subject to deferred tax (2.8) (3.3)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods 0.2 0.1

Total current tax charge for the year 1.6 1.6

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Group has generated significant UK capital losses from disposals in previous years., Such losses will only be available to offset UK
capital profits arising in future periods, such as gains arising on the future sale of freehold properties, and it is expected to be some time
before these losses are relieved. Accordingly, the Group has not recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of these losses. As a
conseguence, the Group does not expect to incur any significant tax charges in respect of capital gains within the foreseeable future.

7 Employees Group Group Company Company

. 2008 2007 2008 2007

Employee costs £m £m £m £m
Wages and salaries 189.9 187.3 1.9 1.8
Social security costs 183 17.6 0.2 0.2
Pension costs (note 23) 5.5 6.8 - 0.1
213.7 211.7 2.1 2.1

Group Group

2008 2007

Average monthly number of employees {including directors) Number Number
Direct production 823 731

Indirect production and warehousing 1,935 1,957

Sales, marketing and administration 5,344 5,758

8,102 8,446

The average monthly number of employees in the Company during the year was four (2007 - four).

8 Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate emoluments of the directors during the year totalled £2,435,000 (2007 - £2,905,000) which includes payments to directors
of £490,000 (2007 - £449,000) in lieu of the Group making contributions to the defined contribution pension scheme. No directors (2007 -
nily accrued retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme, and no directors {2007 - nil) accrued benefits under a money purchase
scheme. The Group did not make any contributions to money purchase pension schemes during the year (2007 - £nil). The highest paid
director received emoluments during the year as follows:

2008 2007

£ £

Salary, bonus and benefits in kind 719,000 820,000
Payment in lieu of Group pension contributions (see below) 210,000 191,000
Emoluments of highest paid director 929,000 1,011,000

At the end of 2005, the highest paid director gave up his rights to further accrual under a defined benefit scheme and the Group agreed to
make broadly equivalent contributions under defined contribution amangements which commenced on 1 January 2006. However,
following the change in the legislation and tax regime for pensions on 6 April 2006, it could have been disadvantageous for certain
directors, including the highest paid director, if the Group had continued to make contributions to their defined contribution scheme
account. As a result, the Group agreed with the directors to pay them a sum instead of making these contributions. These payments are
being made at a level where the Group is in a no better or worse position than if the contributions had been made. No payments have
been made in 2008 to defined contribution arangements in respect of the highest paid director (2007 - nil).

The Chairman received fees under a contract for services of £55,600 in the year (2007 - £53,500) plus expenses. Fees of £120,000 {2007
- £115,500) were paid in the year in respect of the other three (2007 - three) non-executive directors.

During the year, 150,000 share options were granted to Directors of the Company. No options over shares in Unipant Group of
Companies Limited were exercised by the directors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 Intangible assets

Goodwill  Licences / Other Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2008 1823 0.8 183.1
Additions - 0.1 0.1
Adjustments of consideration paid {0.6) - {0.5)
At 31 December 2008 181.7 0.9 182.6
Amortisation
At 1 January 2008 175.7 0.5 176.2
Charge for the year 1.8 0.1 19
At 31 December 2008 177.5 0.6 178.1
Net book amount
At 31 December 2008 4.2 0.3 4.5
At 31 December 2007 6.6 0.3 6.9

In the year, an amount of £0.6m (2007 - £0.2m) deferred consideration became no longer payable in respect of the Group's shareholding
in Varitext Limited purchased in 2006. The amount has been credited in full in the year against the carrying value of the goodwill and
consequently the amortisation charge over the remaining estimated economic life of the goodwill will be reduced accordingly. An amount
of £0.1m was capitalised in the year that related to the development of product for a customer. These costs will be amortised over the
three year life of the contract.

Included in the accumulated amortisation at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008 is an aggregate impairment charge from prior
years of £159.2m.

10 Tangible fixed assets Land & buildings
Long Short Plant and
Freehold leasehold leasehold machinery Total
£m £m £m Em £m

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2008 365 3.2 9.3 744 1234
Additions 3.2 01 0.3 6.5 101
Revaluation 0.3 - - - 0.3
Disposals {0.1) (0.2) (1.3) (11.0) (12.6)
Exchange adjustment 3.1 0.1 0.1 4.4 7.7
At 31 December 2008 43.0 3.2 8.4 74.2 128.9
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2008 45 14 6.9 59.2 72.0
Charge for the year 0.6 0.1 0.4 5.2 6.3
Revaluation 1.2 - - - 1.2
Disposals - (0.2) (1.1) {9.5) {10.8)
Exchange adjustment 1.2 - 0.1 3.9 5.2
At 31 December 2008 7.5 1.3 §.3 58.8 73.9
Net book amount
At 31 December 2008 35.5 1.9 24 15.5 55.0
At 31 December 2007 32.0 1.8 2.4 15.2 51.4

Included within plant and machinery additions during the year are £1.6m of costs associated with assets under construction. These are
costs incurred on the development of a bespoke IT system to support the warehouse and back office functions in the UK branch network.
These assets have not been depreciated in the year.

In addition to the normal cyclical revaluations, the Group performed an interim valuation of a large proportion of its portfolio at the end of
the year in response to the changes in the economic environment. This has resulted in an overall reduction of £0.9m in the value of the
Group's freehold properties. This is represented by a revaluation of the cost value of £0.3m and revaluation of the accumulated
depreciation of £1.2m.

Included within the balance of accumulated depreciation at 1 January 2008 is an amount of £2.0m relating to impairments of prior
periods. The impairment charges have been made to reduce the assets of certain operations within the Company to their calculated
recoverable value. The depreciation charge for the year is stated after a net impairment charge of £nil {2007 - release of £0.6m} made in
respect of assets used in opesations where revisions to the value in use have been assessed. Hence, an amount of £2.0m relating to
previous impairments is included within the balance of accumulated depreciation at 31 December 2008.



26 Unipart Group of Companies Limited Annual Report 2008

10 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

If the Group's freehold land and buildings had not been revalued, their net book value would have been: 2008 2007

£m £m
Cost 24.0 18.7
Accumulated depreciation (8.5) (7.2)
Closing net book amount 15.5 11.5

Al of the freehold land and buildings were valued as at 31 December 2005 on the basis of existing use at an aggregate value of £28.0m.
At 31 December 2008 some of the porticlio of properties were revalued as part of the five-year cycle on the basis of existing use and
interim valuations were performed on some of the properties giving a total aggregate value of £35.5m.

Certain of the freehold properties, including those overseas properties, were valued by external valuers, Edwards Symmons & Partners,
Harris Lamb, Thomas Memifield and DTZ Zadelhoff, all being qualified valuers and members of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) or equivalent professional bodies in the case of the overseas valuers. The remaining properties, which consist of
broadly similar properties, were valued by qualified Chartered Surveyors, being members of RICS, who are employees of the Unipart
Group Property Department. The aggregate value of the valuation perfermed by the internal surveyors was £3.8m (2007 - £3.8m)
resulting in a revaluation reserve of £1.6m (2007 - £1.3m).

All valuations were carried out in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards; the internal valuations were subject to
review by Edward Symmons & Partners.

No deferred tax is recognised on the revaluation of fixed assets.

11 Investments

{a) investments in Joint ventures - Group Shara of
net assets Loans Total
£€m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 : 54 4.3 87
Profit for the financial year 0.7 - 0.7
At 31 December 2008 6.1 4.3 10.4

The Group's interests in its principal joint ventures are 50% of the ordinary shares of each of Kautex Unipart Limited, Unipart Eberspicher
Exhaust Systems Limited and Van Wezel Austria GmbH. The loan is from Unipart Group of Companies Limited to Kautex Unipart Limited
and interest is charged at 5% per annum. The Group provides certain administrative services to its joint ventures, the transactions being
disclosed in note 25.

(b) Investments In assoclates and other investments - Group

Associated
undertaking Other Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2008 0.8 0.6 1.4
Profit for the financial year 0.4 - 04
Exchange adjustment 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 December 2008 1.3 0.6 1.9
Provisions
At 1 January 2008 - 0.5 0.5
Impairment in the year - 0.1 0.1
At 31 December 2008 - 0.6 0.6
Net book amount
At 31 December 2008 1.3 - 1.3
At 31 December 2007 0.8 0.1 0.9

Associated undertakings represent the Group's 28% ordinary shareholding of ACI Aute Compenents International SRO which has been
included in the consclidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Other investments represent an equity
Investment in Real Affinity plc whose AIM listing has been cancelled during the year and an amount has been provided to fully write down
the investment at 31 December 2008.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

11 Investments (continued)

{c) Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures - Company

Subsidiaries Joint ventures Total
Sharas Shares Loans
£m £m frn £m
Cost and net book amount
At 1 January 2008 820 5.8 4.3 72.%
Additions 10.0 - - 10.0
At 31 December 2008 T72.0 5.8 4.3 821

Details of the principal undertakings in the Group and the investments of the Company are shown in note 26. During the year the
Company increased its existing share capital investment in its 100% owned subsidiary of Unipart Rail Holdings Limited.

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by either their underlying net assets or their value in use.

12 Stock
2008 2007
Em £m
Raw materials and consumables 5.7 39
Work in progress 28 2.2
Finished goods and goods for resale 138.8 142.5
147.3 148.6
13 Debtors Group Group Cormpany Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £Em £m
{a) Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors and bills receivable 123.9 1204 - -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 121 429
Amounts owed by joint ventures 0.7 14 - -
Other debtors 12.3 15.3 7.0 6.9
Carporation tax 0.1 - - 0.2
Amounts receivable under finance lease 0.7 - - -
Prepayments and accrued income 28.4 289 - -
166.1 166.0 19.1 50.0
{b) Amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred tax (see below) 18.5 16.4 0.9 -
Amounts receivable under finance lease 5.3 - - -
Prepayments and accrued income 34 4.7 - -
272 21.1 0.9 -

Amounts due from group undertakings and joint ventures are unsecured and have no fixed repayment date. Certain amounts due from

group undertakings and joint ventures bear interest.

Included in the other debtors of the Group and the Company is £7.0m owed by the Group Share Trust (2007 - £6.8m) which the Directors

believe is recoverable by the equity interest held by the Trust.

Deferred tax Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Accelerated capital allowances 119 11.7 - -
Trading losses and timing differences 8.8 4.7 0.9 -
Deferred tax asset included within debtors 185 16.4 0.9 -
Related deferred tax asset included within the net pension deficit 15.5 8.0 - -
34.0 24.4 0.9 -

The Group and the Company does not recognise an asset in respect of UK capital losses generated from disposals in previous years as
such losses will only be available to offset UK capital profits arising in future periods and it is expected to be some time before these
losses can be relieved. In addition, the Group has not recognised an asset of £2.6m (2007 - £0.7m) in respect of trading losses of

subsidiaries where it is unlikely that these losses will be utilised in the foreseeable future.
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13 Debtors (continued)

Group Group Company Company
Deferred tax 2008 2007 2008 2007
£rm £rn £m £m
At 1 January 244 32.8 - .
Amounts (charged) / credited to the profit and loss account (0.1) 0.3 0.9 -
Amounts charged to the statement of total recognised gains and losses 10.0 (8.7) - -
Foreign exchange adjustments {0.3) - - -
At 31 December 34.0 24.4 0.9 -
Representing:
Deferred tax asset included within debtors 18.5 16.4 0.9 -
Related deferred tax asset included within the net pension deficit (note 23) 15.5 8.0 - -
34.0 24.4 0.9 -
Amounts receivable under finance leases comprises: Group Group Compzny Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Total amounts recelvable £m £m £m £m
Within 1 year 0.7 - - -
Between 2 - 5 years 5.3 - - -
6.0 - - -
14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts (note 16) 5.5 19.7 - -
Trade creditors 118.1 1336 - -
Amounts owing to other Group undertakings - - 17.9 17.2
Amounts owing to joint ventures 0.5 - - -
Corporation tax - - 0.2 -
Cther taxes and social security costs 14.7 14.2 - -
Cther creditors 28.2 29.3 - -
Finance leases 0.8 - - -
Accruals and deferred income 71.8 71.6 0.1 0.1
239.6 268.4 18.2 17.3

Amounts due to group undertakings and joint ventures are unsecured and have no fixed repayment date.

underakings and joint ventures bear interest,

Certain amounts due to group

15 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than ono year Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Bank loans (note 18) 39.0 18.4 - -
Other creditors - 0.7 - -
Finance leases 3.0 - - -
Accruals and deferred income - 0.1 - -
42.0 19.2 - -
16 Borrowings Group Group
2008 2007
£m £m
Amounts due within one year
Term and credit facility 4.8 104
Bank overdrafts 0.7 9.3
5.5 19.7
Amounts due after more than one year
Term and credit facility committed untt! 30 June 2011 14.7 -
Working capital facility committed until 31 December 2013 24.3 18.4
39.0 18.4

The bank loans and overdrafts bear interest based on the base rate or LIBOR and are secured by fixed and floating charges over certain
of the Group’s assets. The term and credit facility is stated net of unamortised issue costs of £0.4m (2007 - £0.1m). The working capital
facility is stated net of unamortised issue costs of £0.6m {2007 - £0.8m). These costs are allocated to the Group profit and loss account

over the terms of the respective facilities at a constant rate.
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16 Borrowings (continued)

The Group has various borrowings facilities avaitable, the principal facility being a working capital facility of up to £102.0m which is
committed until 31 December 2013. In addition, there is a term and credit facility of £42,5m at 31 December 2008, repayable at £5.0m
per annum until 30 June 2011.

Group Group

Finance leases 2008 2007

Future minimum payments under finance leases are as follows; £Em £m
Within one ysar 1.0 -
In more than one ygar, but nat more than five years 3.3 -
Total before finance charges 4.3 -
Less: finance charges included above (0.5) -
Total due under finance leases 3.8 -

17 Provisions for liabilities

Group

Warranties Property Total

£m £m £m

At 1 January 2008 0.3 18.2 185

Charged in the year . 0.1 3.6 3.7

Utilised in the year (0.1) {3.1) (3.2)

Released in the year - (1.1) {1.1)

Unwinding of discount - (0.2) {0.2)

At 31 December 2008 0.3 17.4 17.7

Warranty

The Group supplies product to customers on which it offers a warranty for a period of up to three years. The cost of warranties on sales
made prior to the year end has been estimated based on past experience of warranty settlements. It is anticipated that the existing
provision will be utilised within the next two to three years.

Property

The property provision is in respect of contractual obligations primarily in retation to onerous leases on vacant properties and in relation to
dilapidations. The charge in respect of the unwinding of discounting of provisions is included in net other finance income (note S). These
provisions are expected to be utilised at the end of the respective leases, which vary between 1 and 50 years.

18 Share capital

The share capital comprises ‘A’, ‘D' and 'E' Ordinary shares of ¥zp each and each share, irrespective of class, has the same dividend
entittement and has one vote at a general meeting. On a return of capital on liquidation or otherwise, the assets of the Company available
for distribution amongst shareholders shall be applied in paying pro-rata to the holders of the 'A* Ordinary shares the sum of ¥p per share
and te the holders of the *D' Ordinary shares and the 'E' Ordinary shares the sum of 1p per share and thereafter, pro-rata to the nominal
value of shares held by them.

'A' Ordinary D" Ordinary 'E' Ordinary  Total Ordinary
shares shares shares gsharos

Authorised share capital (number of shares)
At 31 December 2008 miltion 190.5 7.0 2.5 200.0
At 31 December 2007 million 180.5 7.0 25 200.0
Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital (number of shares)
At 31 December 2008 million 72.1 7.0 25 81.6
At 31 December 2007 million 721 7.0 2.5 816
Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital
At 31 December 2008 £m 0.4 - - 0.4
At 31 December 2007 £m 0.4 - - 0.4

The shareholders with over 5% of the issued share capital at 31 December 2008 are UGC Share Trustees Limited, Electra Private Equity
Partners Scotland LLP, UGC Pension Shareholdings Limited ("UGCPSL"), Mr JM Neill, 3i plc and Standard Lite. No individual
shareholder owns greater than 20% of the issued share capita! and as a result, the directors do not consider there to be an ultimate
controlling party.

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, cerlain 'E' Ordinary shares, which were transferred during the Company's share
dealing period in the financial year, were converted to ‘A’ Ordinary shares upon transfer,
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18 Share capital (continued)

The UGCPSL shareholding is held on behalf of the Unipart Group Pension Scheme and the Unipart Group Retirement Benefits Scheme.
The schemes retain the economic interest in the shares (so they will benefit directly from any increase in their value and will receive any
dividends paid by the Company on those shares), however they do not actually hold the shares in their own names and they are not able
to exercise any of the voting rights on them prior to any liquidity opportunity (as defined in an agreement between UGCPSL and the
schemes).

UGCPSL is subject to contractual controls including as to how and when it exercises the voting rights attached to the shares it holds,
under which it must act as required by the Board of Unipart Group of Companies Limited, and only with the approval of the Company's 'D'
shareholders and the majority of the Company's institutional investors. As these arangements pravent the Group from having de facto
control over UGCPSL, it is not considered appropriate to consolidate UGCPSL in the Group's financial statements.

19 Share option schemes

The Group Share Trust has granted options to employees over a number of shares which have already been issued and are owned by
the Group Share Trust. It is not considered appropriate to consolidate the Group Share Trust in the Group's financial statements due to
the terms of the Trust deeds goveming the Group Share Trust, which prevent the Group from having de facto control over the Trust.

The vesting requirements associated with the share options are a combination of ¢riteria based on financial and personal performances.
The share options issued since November 2002 have all been issued at an exercise price of 45p and have a vesting period of 3 years and
a total option length of 10 years. All options exercised are to be settled with ordinary shares of the Company.

No share-based payment charge has been recognised In relation to the options issued since November 2002 on the basis that any
charge would be immaterial. At the date the options were granted, the exercise price was greater than the share valuation.

20 Reserves
Profit Share Capital
and loss premium redernption Revaluation Minority
reserve account rasarve resarva interasts

Group ' £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 70.1 4.4 1.5 20.5 0.6
{Loss) / profit for the financial year (3.3) - - - 0.3
Revaluations of freehold land and buildings in year - - - {0.9) -
Transfer from revaluation reserve to profit and loss reserve 0.3 - - {0.3) -
Actuarial loss recognised on pension schemes (36.2) - - - -
Deferred tax relating to actuarial loss on pension schemes 10.0 - - - -
Current tax relating to actuanial loss on pension schemes 0.2 - - - -
Actuarial loss recognised on joint ventures' pension schemes (0.3) - - - -
Deferred tax relating to actuarial gain on joint venture - - - - -
pension schemes
Foreign exchange adjustments 10.7 - - 0.7 0.3
Dividends paid to minority shareholders - - - - (0.4)
At 31 December 2008 51.5 4.4 1.5 20.0 0.8
Net pension deficit 39.9
Profit and loss reserve excluding pension deficit 91.4

The cumulative amount of gocdwill written off directly to reserves prior to the implementation of FRS 10, ‘Goodwill and intangible assets’,
is £17.6m (2007 - £17.6m) in respect of the acquisition of businesses.

Profit and Share Capital

loss premium redemption

resarve account reserve

Company £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 88.7 4.4 11.5
Loss for the year {20.9) - -
At 31 December 2008 67.8 4.4 11.5

The Company has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act 1985. The
Company's loss for the year was £20.9m (2007 - profit of £44.3m).
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21 Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

Group Group Company Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m
{Loss) / profit for the financial year (3.3) 9.5 {20.9) 44.3
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year (net) (15.8) 19.6 - -
Movemenits in equity shareholders’ funds (19.1) 29.14 {20.9) 43
At 1 January 106.9 77.8 105.0 60.7
At 31 December 87.8 106.9 84.1 105.0

22 Notaes to the cash flow statement

2008 2007

(a) Reconciliation of operating (loss) / profit to net cash flow from operating activities £m £m
Operating (loss) / profit {0.5) 7.3
Non-cash movement in exceptional items - a7
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 6.3 55
Amortisation of goodwill and other intangibles 1.9 21

Difference between pension service charge and cash contributions (4.0) {2.1)
Loss on the disposal of fixed assets 0.2 0.3

Movement in stocks 5.5 (3.9)

Movement in debtors 2.4 (9.9)

Movement in creditors (19.0) (6.2)

Movement in provisions {0.9) (1.2)

Net cash outflow from operating activities {8.1) (7.4)

The cash outflow in the prior year includes the settlement of £9.6m for early completion of a contract partially offset by £5.9m of

reorganisation costs.

The discontinued operations contributed £0.6m to net operating cash flows reflecting strong working capital control prior to disposal,
£{0.2)m in respect of net returns on investments and servicing of finance, £nil in respect of taxation and £nil for capital expenditure.

Non-cash
2007 Cashflow rmovaments 2008
{b) Analysis of net debt £m £m £m £m
Cash 29.7 (16.0) 23 16.0
CQverdrafts (9.3) 8.6 - 0.7)
20.4 (7.4) 23 15.3
Debt due within a year {10.4) 57 {0.1) {4.8)
Debt due after one year {18.4) {20.5) (0.1) {39.0)
Finance leases due within 1 year - - (0.8) {0.8)
Finance leases due after 1 year - - (3.0) (3.0)
(28.8) {14.8) (4.0) (47.6)
Total (8.4) (22.2) (1.7) {32.3)

Non-cash movements relate to amortisation of issue costs, new finance lease agreements and foreign exchange movements,
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22 Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)

(c) Sale of businesses Crash pane! Paint

repair distribution

operations operations Total

Net assets disposed: £m £m Em
Tangible fixed assets - 1.1 1.1
Stock 0.4 5.9 6.3
Debtors - 0.8 0.8
Creditors - {0.6) {0.6)

0.4 7.2 7.6
Costs of disposal 22 34 5.6
Loss on disposal (i) {2.5) (4.3) {6.8)

0.1 6.3 6.4
Satisfied by:
Cash 0.1 6.3 6.4

The paint distribution operations were reported as discontinued operations in 2007 but the sale was not completed, nor cash received,
until 2008. The sale of glass distribution operation was completed on 31 December 2008 and no cash had been received in 2008,

(i) The loss on disposal of the crash panel repair operations of £2.5m has been recognised in exceptional items after operating loss in
2008 and the loss on disposal of the paint distribution operations of £4.3m was recognised in exceptional items after operating profit in
2007.

The cash flow from the disposal of businesses resuited from the following movements: £m
Cash proceeds received in the year 6.4
Costs associated with disposal of crash panel repair business paid in 2008 (2.1)
Costs associated with disposal of the glass distribution operations paid in 2008 (0.3)
Costs associated with disposal of paint distribution operation paid in 2008 {2.1}
Disposal of businesses 1.9

23 Penslon commitments

The Group operates several pension schemes in the United Kingdom, the largest being the Unipart Group Pension Scheme and the
Unipart Group Retirement Benefits Scheme. The assets of these pension schernes are held separately from those of the Group in trustee
administered funds. The schemes are principally funded defined benefit schemes. Contributions are assessed in accordance with the
advice of an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit method, where applicable, and as agreed with the trustees of the
schemes. Contributions are payable in accordance with the schedules of contributions agreed with the Trustees of the pension schemes
which are fixed until 2015. These schedules will be reviewed in the light of the results of the next actuarial valuations {which are due to be
undertaken as at 31 January 2010) and may then be varied with the agreement of the trustee. With effect from 31 December 2005, the
defined benefit accrual ceased in the Unipart Group Pension Scheme and the Unipart Group Retirement Benefits Scheme and members
had the option of continuing to accrue benefits under new defined contribution sections of the schemes.

Total contributions made in the year to defined contribution sections of these schemes were £3.7m (2007 - £3.6m).

The latest formal actuarial valuations of the Unipart Group Pension Scheme and the Unipart Group Retirement Benefits Scheme were
carried out as at 31 January 2007 by Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow Limited. Based on the valuations, the value of the schemes’ liabilities
have been updated by Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow Limited to assess the liabilities of the schemes at 31 December 2008 for the purposes of
FRS 17. Scheme assets are stated at their market value at 31 December 2008.

The disclosures for all of the Group's defined benefit amangements are aggregated below. Included in these numbers are two overseas
defined benefit schemes but these schemes are not material to the Group totals. As with previous years, the Company has accounted for
contributions into the defined benefit sections as if the scheme were a defined contribution scheme, as the Company is unable to identify
its share of the underlying assets and liabifities in the schemes, The Company cannot identify its share of assets and liabilities because
the two pension schemes operated by the Group are managed on a total basis with neither the liabilities nor the assets segregated
between members who have worked for the Company and other Group subsidiaries which have had employees in the defined benefit
sections. [n addition, key assumptions on mortality and dependants pensions have not been separately assessed. The Company will be
expected to continue to contribute to the two pension schemes based on the results of the triennial actuarial valuations. The amount of
such contributions will vary dependent on the actual actuarial experience of the schemes and the investment raturns achieved.

The key financial and other assumptions used to calculate the scheme liabilities are: 2008 2007
Rate of general increase in salaries 3.84% 4.10%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.74% 291%
Discount rate 6.73% 587%

Inflation assumption . 2.72% 3.10%
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23 Penslon commitments (continued)

As part of the 2007 triennial valvation of the main Group schemes, a full review of mortality for scheme members was conducted and the
demographic assumptions used in assessing the FRS 17 liabilities reflect this review. For these schemes, the following life expectancies
have been used:

Retirement in this year for male pensioners at age 65 20.6 years
Retirement in 2025 for male pensioners at age 65 21.6 years

Consistent mortality tables for future female pensioners have been used. The mortality assumptions used in the valuation of the defined
benefit pension liabilities of the Groups UK schemes have been calculated by adjusting the standard mortality tables to reflect the
characteristics of the workforce.

In line with prior years, it has been assumed that at retirement, members commute some of their pension for cash, being some three-
quarters of the maximum amount of the commutable pension, based on the schemes’ current commutation factors.

Minor changes in key assumptions may have a material impact on the quantum of the pension deficit,

The assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return were: Long-term rate Long-term rate
of expected 2008 of expected 2007
retum £m return £m
Equities / Absolute return funds 8.3% 353.9 8.4% 4208
Government bonds 3.8% 0.7 4.4% 1.5
Corparate bonds 4.8% 55.0 4.9% 59.8
Property / Infrastructure 6.8% 42.2 7.4% 437
Other 4.2% 11.5 4.8% 50.8
Total market value of assets 463.3 5856
Present value of funded pension plans' liabilities {518.6) (614.2)
Deficit in funded plans (55.3) {28.6)
Liability for unfunded pension plans {0.1) (0.1)
Total deficit in plans (55.4) {28.7)
Related deferred tax asset 15.5 8.0
Net pension deficit {39.9) (20.7)

The equity investments which are held in plan assets are quoted and are valued at the current bid price in 2008 following the adoption of
the amendment to FRS 17. In previous years these were valued at mid market price. The assets in the previous years have not been
restated to reflect the change in valuation method as the amount of the reduction in asset values is not material.

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current
investment palicy. Expected vields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption vields at the balance sheet date.
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of retumn experienced in the respective markets.

The movements in the present value of scheme liabllities during the year were: 2008 2007
£m £m
Liabilities at 1 January (614.2) (654.3)
Current service cost (2.7) {3.2)
Interest cost {33.6) (31.3)
Contributions {0.9) {0.9)
Settlements 09 13.7
Benefits paid 233 23.0
Actuarial gain 100.9 414
Foreign exchange adjustments {0.2) 0.1
Members share 7.9 {2.7)

Liabilities at 31 December {518.6) (614.2)
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23 Pension commitments (continued)

The movements in the fair value of scheme assets in plans during the year were: 2008 2007

£m £m
Assets at 1 January 585.6 590.3
Expected return on scheme assets 395 41.2
Actuarial loss o {13r.) (17.8)
Settlements - {(13.7)
Benefits paid (23.3) (23.0)
Contributions 6.5 59
Members share (7.9) 27
Assets at 31 December 463.3 585.6

Scheme assets include a holding of shares in the Company valued at £4.2m (2007 - £5.4m). Scheme assets do not include any property

occupied by any members of the Group. The actual loss on scheme assets in the year was £97.6m (2007 - gain £23.4m).

The performance statements include the following amounts: 2008 2007
£m £m
Amounts charged to operating (loss) / profit
Current service cost {2.7) {3.2)
Settlements 0.9 -
{1.8) (3.2)
Defined contribution schemes {3.7} {3.6)
Total operating charge (5.5} (6.8)
Analysis of amount credited to nat other finance Income
Expected return on pension scheme assets 398 41,2
Interest on pension scheme liabilities {33.6) (31.3)
Net return 5.9 9.9
Amounts included within the Group statement of total recognised gains and losses
Actual return less axpected return on pension schame assets {137.1) {17.8)
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities (2.4) (10.1)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities 103.3 51.5
Actuarial {loss) / gain recognised in the Group statement of total recognised gains and fosses {36.2) 236
History of axperience gains and losses Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 D b Nno b 3D b
2008 2007 2008 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m £m
Liabilities . {518.6) (614.2) {654.3) (673.4) {630.1)
Plan assets 463.3 585.6 590.3 550.9 462.4
Scheme deficit (55.3) {28.6) {64.0) (122.5) {187.7)
Experience gains and losses on scheme assets (137.1) {17.8) 18.4 517 12.5
Experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities (2.4) (10.1) 3.7 (7.5) {15.0)
Actuarial (loss) f gain recognised in the Group statement of (36.2) 23.6 323 28.8 (17.7)
total recognised gains and losses
24 Commitments
(a} Capital commitments Group Group
2008 2007
£m £m
Contracted as at the year end but not provided for in the financial statements 1.0 0.4

The Company had no capital commitments at 31 December 2008 (2007 - £nil).
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24 Commitments (contlnued)

(b) Contingent liabilities and financial commitments Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

Em £m £m £m

Guarantees for export trading and loan facilities 4.6 4.9 1.5 1.5

Under the Group's banking arrangements, the Company, together with certain of its subsidiary undertakings, has given security, by way of
fixed and floating charges over certain assets, to guarantee bank loans provided to the Group. The amount guaranteed by the Company
outstanding at 31 December 2008 was £25.2m (2007 - £19.2m).

{c) Operating lease commitments

tand and Land and
buildings buildings Othar Other
2008 2007 2008 2007
Em £m £m £m
Annual amounts payable on agreements expinng:
- within one year 1.0 1.1 3.3 36
- after one year but within five years 89 4.7 4.0 4.0
- after five years 16.9 18.6 - -
26.8 24.4 7.3 7.6

The Company had no cperating lease commitments at 31 December 2008 (2007 - £nil}.

25 Related party transactions

The Group has taken the exemption available under FRS 8, ‘Related party disclosures’, from disclosing related party transactions
between entities within the Group. The Group and its joint ventures provide certain services on behalf of each other which involve making
payments on each other's behalf. During the year, the total payments made on behalf of Kautex Unipart Limited amounted to £5.9m
(2007 - £5.3m) and amounts owed to the Group at 31 December 2008 were £0.3m {2007 - £0.5m} as reported in note 13(a). In addition,
an amount of £4.3m was owed to the Group at 31 December 2008 under a formal loan agreemen! bearing interest of 5% per annum as
reported in note 11{a) (2007 - £4.3m). During the year, the lotal payments made on behalf of Unipart Eberspacher Exhaust Systems
Limited amounted to £3.1m (2007 - £1.5m) and amounts owed to the Group at 31 December 2008 were £0.4m (2007 - £0.9m) as
reporied in note 13(a). The total payments made by Unipart Eberspicher Exhaust Systems Limited on behalf of the Group amounted to
£3.9m (2007 £1.6m) and amounts owed to Unipart Eberspéicher Exhaust Systems Limited by the Group were £0.5m (2007 Enil}.
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26 Principal Group undertakings

Country of incorporation and
operation

Subsidiary undertakings

At the year end, the Group's principal subsidiary undertakings were as set out below with those directly held by the Company being

indicated by (i). Unless otherwise stated, the holdings are 100% of the voting rights and shares.

Distribution and logistics management
Europe, Middle East and Africa

Serck Services (Bahrain) EC

Van Wezel Autoparts NV

Unipart NV

E W (Holdings) Limited

Unipart Automotive Limited

Unipart Rail Limited

Unipart Exports Limited

Unipart Group Limited (i)

Unipart Logistics Limited

Unipart North America Limited

Unipart Rail Logistics Limited

Unipart Leisure and Marine Limited
Unipart Security Solutions Limited {formerly WPI Limited}
Unipart DCM Service GmbH

Van Wezel GmbH

Intertruck Benelux BV

TECE Unipart BV

Unipart Services BV

Van Wezel Nederand BV

Serck Services (Oman) LLC (49%) (i)
UL Logistics PTY Ltd

Unipart Services Spain, S.L.

Serck Services (Gulf) Limited (49%} (ii)
Serck Services Company LLC (49%) {ii)

Americas and Asia Pacific

Unipart Logistics PTY Limited

Unipart Services Canada Inc

Unipart Logistics (Suzhou) Trading Co Limited
Unipart Kabushiki Kaisha

Unipart Services America Inc

Serck Services Inc

Group vehicle and property holding companies
Gresty Road 2005 Holdings Limited

Gresty Road Supplies Limited

Unipart Fleet Services Limited

UGC Properties Limited (i)

Intermediate holding companies

Unipart Rail Holdings Limited (i)

Unipart Automotive Holdings Limited (i)

Unipart International Holdings Limited

UGC Holdings BV

Joint ventures and associates

Bahrain
Belgium
Belgium
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
Germany
Germany
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Oman
South Africa
Spain

UAE

UAE

Australia
Canada
China
Japan
USA
USA

England
England
England
England

England
England
England
Netherlands

The Group’s principal interests in joint ventures and associates are set out below, those held directly by the Company being indicated by

(i). Unless otherwise stated, the holdings are 50% of the voting nghts and shares.

Distribution and logistics management
Van Wezel Austria GmbH
ACI Auto Components International SRO (26%)

Manufacture of automotive components
Kautex Unipart Limited (i)
Unipart Eberspdcher Exhaust Systems Limited (i)

Austria
Czech Republic

England
England

(i) These companies have been treated as subsidiaries under section 258{4) of the Companies Act 1985. The investments are held for
the long term and the Group's management takes an active role in the operational and strategic management of these companies. These
operations are effectively controlled by the Group with a dominant influence being exercised over their activities,

As well as those undertakings listed above, within the European Union the Group also has branches in Belgium, France, Italy, Republic of

Ireland and Spain.
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